9. Concluding Remarks

The Special Chapter has assessed the actual and expected
impacts of the current global economic crisis on workers
and enterprises in Asia, including SMEs. It has also
discussed how to foster greater dynamism in SMEs once
the crisis is over.

The chapter’s analysis suggests considerable diversity
in how the crisis is affecting different sectors, enterprises,
and workers across the region. Particularly hard-hit have
been manufacturers of exported goods in East, Southeast,
and South Asian economies, especially those engaged in
the production of apparel, textiles, and footwear; electrical
and non-electrical machinery; and road vehicles and
components, among others. But other sectors have also
been hurt as aggregate demand has slowed, with obvious
adverse impacts for their workers.

Thus, while recent labor force survey data clearly
indicate that declines in manufacturing employment are a
common phenomena across most of the countries that track
employment on a quarterly basis, employment in sectors
such as construction and wholesale and/or retail trade
services have also suffered. At another level, reductions
in remittances have either already started taking a toll on
economies—such as in Central Asia—or are expected to
do so. To the extent that remittances have been a useful
source for recipients to fund small businesses and start-
ups, an adverse effect on these smaller enterprises can also
be expected.

Efforts by governments to help their economies
cope seem to be working, for example, through fiscal
stimulus, loose monetary policy, and various efforts to
assist enterprises. However, the crisis also provides an
opportunity to think about longer-term issues. First,
while a squeeze in available finance has by all accounts
affected SMEs more than large enterprises, leading many
governments in the region to step up efforts to improve
their access to finance, the challenge of improving SME
access to finance has no quick solutions. As this chapter
has noted, improving SME access to finance requires
building up an appropriate regulatory infrastructure. It
also requires stronger informational infrastructure for the
efficient functioning of financial markets. Both of these,
especially the first, take time and sustained effort.

Second, while the global economy will no doubt
recover from the current crisis, a return to a fast-growing
developing Asia will require some rebalancing of growth
toward domestic demand in the region as a whole. As

argued in this chapter, fostering dynamism among Asian
enterprises, especially SMEs will be important to this
effort.

Defining SMEs as enterprises with less than 200
workers, manufacturing statistics from the region reveal
that they can employ anywhere from around 50% to
90% of total employment, and are even more important
outside manufacturing. It is precisely because SMEs
employ so many of Asia’s workers that their productivity
and the earnings and wages they generate become crucial
in determining living standards for many Asians. Put
differently, a dynamic SME sector is crucial to a vibrant
middle class.

Public policy has an important role to play. This
chapter argues that the design of public policy needs to
be based on a clear understanding of the different types
of enterprises in the region, how they are linked with one
another, and their potential for growth.

In this context, the chapter notes that while
microenterprises (enterprises with less than five workers
and typically operating in the informal sector) can account
for as much as a third or more of total nonagricultural
employment, not all microenterprises represent nascent
entrepreneurship. Indeed, many microentrepreneurs may
be running their businesses because of a lack of stable
wage employment elsewhere.

This is not to suggest that policy should neglect
microentrepreneurs. First, assisting microenterprises can
be an important way of alleviating poverty and hardship.
Second, research shows that there are microentrepreneurs
who can expand their businesses. In the context of policies
aimed at generating good jobs and growth, it is important
to figure out how to help such enterpreneurs expand their
businesses.

Nevertheless, the big gains may well come from
understanding how public policy can help other enterprises,
especially SMEs, grow and become more productive. The
list of factors that constrain the growth of smaller enterprises
include difficulties in accessing finance, weakness in
infrastructure (particularly transportation and electricity
supply), and regulations that are especially costly for small
enterprises or which take away the incentives for smaller
firms to grow (for example by reserving production of
certain products for small enterprises). At the same time,
market failures—caused by learning externalities, for
example—can lead to underinvestment in the adoption of
new technologies and hold back diversification into new
product lines and markets.



The challenge for public policy is then twofold.
First, it involves understanding from a country-specific
perspective which factors constrain the growth and
diversification of SMEs. Second, it involves understanding
how to design and implement interventions that effectively
help SMEs grow and diversify.

In this context, the chapter has presented some
design principles policymakers should adhere to when
contemplating specific interventions. Crucial among them
is the need for close collaboration between the private
sector and government, with the aim of uncovering
obstacles to enterprise growth and diversification and
determining the specific interventions that would best
remove them. Significantly, this collaboration should not
be one that includes only large and well-connected firms
representing the private sector. SMEs must be included also.
Additionally, there will always be some uncertainty about
how interventions will play out. It is therefore essential that
interventions be undertaken alongside rigorous monitoring
and evaluation efforts.

More generally, adopting more of an experimental
mindset toward policies, combined with a commitment to
rigorous evaluation, would greatly help in finding policies
and programs to encourage greater dynamism among
Asian enterprises, especially SMEs, and thereby offer
better prospects for their workers.

References

Abe, M. and M. Kawakami. 1997. "A distributive
comparison of enterprise size in (the Republic
of) Korea and [Taipei,China]." Developing
Economies  35(4): 382-400. December.
Available: http://www.ide.go.jp/English/Publish/
Periodicals/De/pdf/97_04_03.pdf Ahmed,
M.U. (ed.) 2009. SME Foundation Annual
Report 2008-2009. Dhaka: Small and Medium
Enterprise Foundation. Available at http:/www.
smef.org.bd/others/sme pub.php.

Aldaba, R. 2008. “SMEs in the Philippine Manufacturing
Industry and Globalization: Meeting
Development Challenges.” In ASEAN SMEs and
Globalization. ERIA Research Project Report
2007 No. 5, edited by Hank Lim. Chiba, Japan:
Institute of Developing Economies (IDE)-Japan
External Trade Organization (JETRO).

Amsden A. 1989. Asia’s Next Giant: South Korea and Late
Industrialization. New York: Oxford University
Press.

Asian Development Bank (ADB). 2005a. Key Indicators
2005: Labor Markets in Asia: Promoting Full,
Productive, and Decent Employment. Manila.

2005b. Asian Development Outlook 2005
Promoting competition  for long-term
development. Manila

.2006. Best Practice Notes on Small- and Medium-
Sized Enterprises Support. Manila.

. 2007. Asian Development Outlook 2007. Hong
Kong, China.

. 2009a. Asia Economic Monitor. Manila.

2009b. Asian Development QOutlook 2009.
Manila.

. 2009¢c. Lao PDR: Options for a Regulatory
Review Program and an Office of Best Regulatory
Practice. Manila.

. 2009d. Nepal Critical Development Constraints.
A joint study by ADB, DFID, and ILO.

Audretsch, D. 1995. Innovation and Industry Evolution.
Cambridge, Massachusetts: MIT Press.

. 2002. “The Dynamic Role of Small Firms:
Evidence fromthe U.S.” In Small Firm Dynamism
in East Asia. Volume 18(1-3), edited by Farrukh
Igbal and Shujiro Urata. The Netherlands:
Kluwer Academic Publishers.

Ayyagari, M., A. Demirgii¢c-Kunt and V. Maksimovic. 2006.
“How Important are Financing Constraints? The
Role of Finance in the Business Environment.”
World Bank Policy Research Working Paper No.
3820. World Bank, Washington, D.C.

. 2007. “Firm Innovation in Emerging Markets.”
Policy Research Working Paper No. 4157. World
Bank, Washington, DC.

Bailey, P. 2008. “Cambodian Small and Medium sized
Enterprises: Constraints, Policies and Proposals
for their Development.” In ASEAN SMEs and
Globalization. ERIA Research Project Report
2007 No. 5, edited by Hank Lim. Chiba, Japan:
Institute of Developing Economies (IDE)-
JETRO.

Banerjee, A., S. Cole, and E. Duflo. 2003. “Bank
Financing in India.” Available at http://www.imf.

org/external/np/apd/seminars/2003/newdelhi/

banerjee.pdf.
Banerjee, A. V. and E. Duflo. 2004. “Growth Theory

through the Lens of Development Economics.”
MIT Department of Economics Working Paper
No. 05-01. Cambridge, MA. Available at SSRN:
http://ssrn.com/abstract=651483

. 2007. “What is Middle Class About the Middle
Classes Around the World?”. MIT Department
of Economics Working Paper No. 07-29.
December.



http://www.smef.org.bd/others/sme_pub.php
http://www.smef.org.bd/others/sme_pub.php
http://www.imf.org/external/np/apd/seminars/2003/newdelhi/banerjee.pdf
http://www.imf.org/external/np/apd/seminars/2003/newdelhi/banerjee.pdf
http://www.imf.org/external/np/apd/seminars/2003/newdelhi/banerjee.pdf
http://ssrn.com/abstract=651483

Baneerjee, A. and K. Munshi. 2004. “How Efficiently Is
Capital Allocated? Evidence from the Knitted
Garment Industry in Tirupur .” The Review of
Economics Studies 71(1): 19-42. January.

Beck, T., A. Demirgiic-Kunt, L. Laeven, and R. Levine.
2005. “Finance, Firm Size and Growth.” Policy
Research Working Paper 3485, World Bank,
Washington, DC. January.

Beck, T., A. Demirgiic-Kunt and V. Maksimovic. 2005.
“Financial and Legal Constraints to Growth:
Does Firm Size Matter?” The Journal of Finance
60(1): 137-177. February.

Berry, A., E. Rodriguez and H. Sandee. 2002. “Firm and
Group Dynamics in the Small and Medium
Enterprise Sector in Indonesia.” In Small Firm
Dynamism in East Asia. Volume 18(1-3), edited
by Farrukh Igbal and Shujiro Urata. Netherlands:
Kluwer Academic Publishers.

Betcherman, G. and R. Islam, eds. 2001. East Asian Labor
Markets and the Economic Crisis: Impacts,
Responses, and Lessons. Washington, DC:
The World Bank and the International Labour
Organization.

Bhavan, N. 2009. “Best Practices on SME Development
and Management in India.” A paper presented at
the Regional Workshop on SME Development
and Regional Economic Integration held in
Tokyo from 22-26 September 2008. http://www.
adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.india.sme.
dev.mngt.pdf.

Bloom, N., B. Eifert, A. Mahajan, D. McKenzie, and
Roberts, J. 2009. “Management as a technology:
evidence from Indian firms”, Stanford University
mimeo.

Bloom, N., S. Dorgan, J. Dowdy and J. Van Reenen. 2007.
“Management Practice and Productivity: Why
they matter.” Available at http://www.stanford.
edu/~nbloom/ManagementReport.pdf.

BPS-Statistics Indonesia. Avaialabe at www.bps.go.id.

. Indonesia- Economic Census 2006.
. 2007 SAKERNAS survey.

Braverman, H. 1998. Labor and Monopoly Capital. The
Degradation of Work in the Twentieth Century.
New York: Monthly Review Press.

Brazier, R. and E. Rodriguez. 2002. Indonesia: small
business through the economic crisis. Jakarta:
The Asia Foundation.

Brown, C., and J. Medoff. 1989. “The Employer Size-
Wage Effect.” Journal of Political Economy
97(5): 1027-1059.

Burgess, R. and R. Pande. 2005. “Do Rural Banks Matter?
Evidence from the Indian Social Banking
Experiment.” American Economic Review 95(3):
780-795. June.

Carlin, W., M. Schaffer and P. Seabright. 2007. “Where
Are the Real Bottlenecks? Evidence from 20,000
Firms in 60 Countries about the Shadow Costs
of Constraints to Firm Performance.” IZA DP
No. 3059, Institute for the Study of Labor (IZA),
Bonn, Germany. September.

CEIC Data Company Ltd. CEIC Database. Available at
http://www.ceicdata.com.

Census and Statistics Department, Hong Kong, China.
Available at http://www.censtatd.gov.hk/.

Choe, K.A. and B. Roberts. Forthcoming. “City Cluster
Economic Development in South Asia: A
Framework Approach.” ADB Urban Development
Series. ADB, Manila.

Cole, S. 2008. “Fixing Market Failures or Fixing Elections?
Agricultural Credit in India.” Harvard Business
School Working Paper No. 09-001. Harvard
University, Cambridge, MA. 5 July. Available at
http://www.hbs.edu/research/pdf/09-001.pdf.

CRISIL. 2009. “Enhancing Competitiveness of Indian
Manufacturing Industry: Assistance in Policy
Making.” Final Report submitted to the National
Manufacturing Competitiveness Council. March.
Available at http://nmcc.nic.in/pdf/CRISIL_
March2009.pdf.

Das, K. 2008. “SME:s in India: Issues and Possibilities in
Times of Globalisation.” In ASEAN SMEs and
Globalization. ERIA Research Project Report
2007 No. 5, edited by Hank Lim. Chiba, Japan:
Institute of Developing Economies (IDE)-
JETRO.

. 2008. “Fostering Competitive Clusters in Asia:
Towards an Inclusive Policy Perspective.”
V.R.F Series No. 437. Institute of Development
Economies, Japan External Trade Organization,
Chiba, Japan.

K. and G. Kalita. 2009. “Do Labor Intensive
Industries Generate Employment? Evidence
from firm level survey in India”” Working
Paper No. 237. Indian Council for Research on
International Economic Relations, New Delhi,
India. June.

Deichmann, U., K. Kaiser, S.V. Lall, and Z. Shalizi.
2005. “Agglomeration, Transport, and Regional
Development in Indonesia.” World Bank Policy
Research Working Paper 3477. World Bank,
Washington, DC.

de Mel, S., D. McKenzie and C. Woodruff. 2008a. “Who
Are the Microenterprise Owners? Evidence
from Sri Lanka on Tokman v. de Soto.” Policy
Research Working Paper No. 4635. World Bank,
Washington, DC.

. 2008b. “Returns to Capital in Microenterprises:
Evidence from a Field Experiment.” Quarterly

Das, D.


http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.india.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.india.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.india.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.bps.go.id
http://www.ceicdata.com
http://www.censtatd.gov.hk/

Journal of Economics 123(4):
November.

. 2009. “Innovative Firms or Innovative Owners?
Determinants of Innovation in Micro, Small, and
Medium Enterprises.” Policy Research Working
Paper No. 4934. World Bank, Washington, DC.

de Soto, H. 1989. The Other Path: The Invisible Revolution
in the Third World. New York: Harper and Row.

Department of Statistics, Malaysia. Available at http://
www.statistics.gov.my/eng/.

. Annual Survey of Manufacturing Industries
2005

Dinc, S. 2005. “Politicians and banks: political influences
on government-owned banks in emerging
countries.” Journal of Financial Economics 77
(2005): 453-479.

Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics,
Taipei,China. Available at http://eng.dgbas.gov.
tw.

Dwor-Frécaut, D., F. Colaco, and M. Hallward-Driemeier.
2000. Asian corporate recovery. Washington,
DC: The World Bank.

Entrepreneurial Finance Lab at Harvard University’s
Center for International Development Available:
www.cid.harvard.edu/efl.

Evenson, R. E., and L E. Westphal. 1995. “Technological
Change and Technology Strategy.” In Handbook
of Development Economics, Volume Il1, edited by
Jere Behrman, and T.N. Srinivasan. Amsterdam:
North Holland.

Felipe, J. 2003. “Is Export-Led Growth Passé? Implications
for Developing Asia.” Economics and Research
Department Working Paper Series No. 48. ADB,
Manila.

. 2009. Inclusive Growth, Full Employment and
Structural Change: Implications and Policies for
Developing Asia. London: Anthem Press.

Felipe, J., and R. Hasan, eds. 2006. Labor Markets in
Asia: Issues and Perspectives. London: Palgrave
Macmillan.

Foster, A. D. and M. R. Rosenzweig.1995. “Learning by
Doing and Learning from Others: Human Capital
and Technical Change in Agriculture.” Journal
of Political Economy 103(6): 1176-1209.

General Statistocs Office of Viet Nam. Available at http://
WWW.ZS0.g0V.VN.

Gibson, J. and S. Stillman. 2009. “Why Do Big Firms Pay
Higher Wages? Evidence from an International
Database.” Review of Economics and Statistics
91(1): 213-218. February.

Gregory, G., C. Harvie, and H.H. Lee. 2002. “Korean
SMEs in the wake of the financial crisis:
strategies, constraints, and performance in a
global economy.” Working Paper Series 02-

1329-1372.

12. Department of Economics, University
of Wollongong. Available at http://www.
uow.edu.au/content/groups/public/ @web/@
commerce/@econ/ documents/doc/uow(012131.
pdf.

Gurumurthy, G. 2002. “IEW unveils low-cost
shuttle-less loom .” Hindi Business Line,
March  29. Available at  http://www.

hinduonnet.com/businessline/2002/05/29/
stories/2002052901501700.htm.

Hall, C., and C. Harvie. 2003. “A comparison of the
performance of SMEs in Korea and Taiwan:
policy implications for turbulent times.” Working
Paper Series 03-05. Faculty of Commerce,
University of Wollongong.

Hallberg, K.A. 2000. “Market-oriented strategy for small
and medium scale enterprises.” IFC Discussion
Paper 40, International Finance Corporation,
Washington, D.C.

Hausmann, R. and B. Klinger. 2006. *“Structural
Transformation and Patterns of Comparative
Advantage in the Product Space”. CID Working
Paper No. 128. Harvard University, Cambridge,
MA. August.

Hausmann, R. and D. Rodrik. 2003. “Economic
Development as Self-Discovery.” Journal of
Development Economics 72(2, Decemener):
603-633.

. 2006. “Doomed to Choose: Industrial Policy as
Predicament”. CID Working Paper. Center for
International Development at Harvard University,
September 9.

Heilmann, S. 2008. “Policy Experimentation in China’s
Economic Rise.” Journal Studies in Comparative
International Development 43(1): 1-26. March.

Homecillo, L., D. Maligalig and R. Hasan. Forthcoming.
“Enterprises Statistics in Developing Asia.”

Inter-American DevelopmentBank(IADB). 2005. “Chapter
14 Access to Financing for Small and Medium
Enterprises.” In IPES 2005 Unlocking Credit:
The Quest for Deep and Stable Bank Lending.

Available:  http://www.iadb.org/res/ipes/2005/
docs/chapter14eng.pdf?bcsi scan D4A612CF
62FE9576=0QYC+TaicPxCogCeAOSCfCAAA
AAsruOeandbcsi scan filename=chapterl4eng.
pdf.
International Labour Organization. LABORSTA On-line
Statistics. Available at http://laborsta.ilo.org/
International Monetary Fund. 2009a. World Economic
Outlook.
. 2009b. Regional Economic Outlook: Asia and
Pacific Global Crisis: The Asian Context
Jacobsson, S. and G. Alam. 1994. Liberalisation and
Industrial Development in the Third World: A



http://www.statistics.gov.my/eng/
http://www.statistics.gov.my/eng/
http://www.cid.harvard.edu/efl
http://www.gso.gov.vn
http://www.gso.gov.vn
http://www.uow.edu.au/content/groups/public/@web/@commerce/@econ/
http://www.uow.edu.au/content/groups/public/@web/@commerce/@econ/
http://www.uow.edu.au/content/groups/public/@web/@commerce/@econ/
http://www.hinduonnet.com/businessline/2002/05/29/stories/2002052901501700.htm
http://www.hinduonnet.com/businessline/2002/05/29/stories/2002052901501700.htm
http://www.hinduonnet.com/businessline/2002/05/29/stories/2002052901501700.htm
http://www.iadb.org/res/ipes/2005/docs/chapter14eng.pdf?bcsi_scan_D4A612CF62FE9576=oQYC+TaicPxCogCeA05CfCAAAAAsru0e&bcsi_scan_filename=chapter14eng.pdf
http://www.iadb.org/res/ipes/2005/docs/chapter14eng.pdf?bcsi_scan_D4A612CF62FE9576=oQYC+TaicPxCogCeA05CfCAAAAAsru0e&bcsi_scan_filename=chapter14eng.pdf
http://www.iadb.org/res/ipes/2005/docs/chapter14eng.pdf?bcsi_scan_D4A612CF62FE9576=oQYC+TaicPxCogCeA05CfCAAAAAsru0e&bcsi_scan_filename=chapter14eng.pdf
http://www.iadb.org/res/ipes/2005/docs/chapter14eng.pdf?bcsi_scan_D4A612CF62FE9576=oQYC+TaicPxCogCeA05CfCAAAAAsru0e&bcsi_scan_filename=chapter14eng.pdf
http://www.iadb.org/res/ipes/2005/docs/chapter14eng.pdf?bcsi_scan_D4A612CF62FE9576=oQYC+TaicPxCogCeA05CfCAAAAAsru0e&bcsi_scan_filename=chapter14eng.pdf
http://laborsta.ilo.org/

Comparison of the Indian and South Korean

Engineering Industries. New Delhi: Sage
Publications.
Karlan, D. and M. Valdivia. 2007. “Teaching

Entrepreneurship: Impact of Business Training
on Microfinance Clients and Institutions.”
CGD Working Paper 107. Center for Global
Development, Washington, DC. Available at
http://www.cgdev.org/content/publications/
detail/12331.

Khwaja, A. and B. Klinger. 2009. “Entrepreneurial
Finance Lab.” Mimeo, Center for International
Development, Harvard University.

Khwaja, A.I. and A. Mian. 2005. “Do Lenders Favor
Politically Connected Firms? Rent Provision
in Emerging Financial Market.” The Quarterly
Journal of Economics 120(4): 1371-1411.

Kim, C.K. 2004. “Developing on SME Development
Policy for Indonesia: Drawing on the Korean
Experience.” UNSFIR Working Paper. United
Nations Support Facility for Indonesia Recovery.
July.

Kim, L. and J. B. Nugent. 1994. “The Republic of Korea’s
Small and Medium-Size Enterprises and their
Support systems.” Policy Research Working
Paper No. 1404. World Bank, Washington D.C.

. 1999. “Korean SMEs and their Support Systems.”
In Fulfilling the Export Potential of Small and
Medium Firms, edited by Brian Levy, Albert
Berry and Jeffrey B. Nugent. Boston: Kluwer.

Kimura, F. 2002. “Subcontracting and the Performance
of Small and Medium Firms in Japan.” In Small
Firm Dynamism in East Asia. Volume 18(1-
3), edited by Farrukh Igbal and Shujiro Urata.
Netherlands: Kluwer Academic Publishers.

. 2007. “The Mechanics of Production Networks
in Southeast Asia: The Fragmentation Theory
Approach. CEI Working Paper Series, No. 2007-
8, Institute of Economic Research, Hitotsubashi
University, Tokyo, Japan.

Khor, N. and I. Sebastian. Forthcoming.
Vulnerability and the Global Crisis.”

Korean Statistical Information Service, Korea, Republic
of. Available at http://www.kosis.kr.

Korea National Statistical Office, Korea Republic of. 2003.
Report on Mining and Manufacturing Survey.
December.

La Porta, R. and Shleifer, A. 2008. “The Unofficial
Economy and Economic Development,” NBER
Working Papers 14520. National Bureau of
Economic Research, Inc.

Laeven, L. and C.Woodruff. 2007. “The Quality of the
Legal System, Firm Ownership, and Firm Size.”

“Exports

The Review of Economics and Statistics 89(4):
601-614.

Lall, S. 1978. Learning to Industrialize: The Acquisition
of Technological Capability in India. London:
Macmillan Press.

. 2001. Competitiveness, Technology and Skills.
Cheltenham: Edward Elgar Publishing Limited.

Lei, W. 2008. “SME Development Policies in China.”
A Country Paper for the Workshop on
SME Development and Regional Economic
Integration, Tokyo, September 22-26, 2008.

Available at http://www.adbi.org/conf-seminar-
papers/2009/02/02/2827 .paper.china.sme.dev.

mngt.
Levy, B. 1991. “Transaction costs, the size of firms and

industrial policy: lessons from a comparative
case study of the footwear industry in Korea and
Taiwan.” Journal of Development Economics 34
(1991): 151-178.

Lilienfeld-Toal, U. D. Mookherjee, and S. Visaria. 2009.
“The Distributive Impact of Reforms in Credit
Enforcement: Evidence from Indian Debt
Recovery Tribunals.” Department of Economics-
The Institute for Economic Development
Working Papers Series DP-183. Boston
University, Boston, MA. Available: http://www.
bu.edu/econ/ied/dp/papers/dp%20183.pdf.

Lim, H. ed. 2007. ASEAN SMEs and Globalization. ERIA
Research Project Report 2007 No. 5. Japan:

Institute of Developing Economies (IDE)-
JETRO.
2009. “SME Support for Technology in

Singapore.” Background Note prepared for
ADB.

Lu, J. 2009. “Chinese Enterprise Dynamics and Enterprise
Development.” Background paper prepared for
ADB.

Lucas, R.E. Jr. 1978. “On the Size Distribution of Business
Firms.” Bell Journal of Economics 9 (Autumn
1978): 508-523.

Mahajan, A. 2009. “Management Intervention for SMEs in
Maharashtra, India.” Background paper prepared
for ADB.

Mazumdar, D. 1997. ‘Structure, Growth and Productivity
of the Small-scale manufacturing sector in India:
An Overview’, National Council of Applied
Economic Research, New Delhi.

1998. “Size-structure of manufacturing
establishments and the productivity differentials
between large and small firms: A comparative
study of Asian economies.” CIS Working Paper:
1998-7. Department of Economics, University
of Toronto. Available at http://www.utoronto.ca/
cis/asiasize.pdf.


http://www.cgdev.org/content/publications/detail/12331
http://www.cgdev.org/content/publications/detail/12331
http://www.kosis.kr
http://www.adbi.org/conf-seminar-papers/2009/02/02/2827.paper.china.sme.dev.mngt
http://www.adbi.org/conf-seminar-papers/2009/02/02/2827.paper.china.sme.dev.mngt
http://www.adbi.org/conf-seminar-papers/2009/02/02/2827.paper.china.sme.dev.mngt
http://www.bu.edu/econ/ied/dp/papers/dp 183.pdf
http://www.bu.edu/econ/ied/dp/papers/dp 183.pdf

.2003.“SmallandMediumEnterprise Development
in Equitable Growth and Poverty Alleviation.” In
Reducing Poverty in Asia: Emerging Issues in
Growth, Targeting and Measurement edited by
Christopher M. Edmonds. Chantelham, UK:
Edward Elgar.

. 2009. “A Comparative Study of the Size
Structure of Manufacturing in Asian Countries”.
Background paper prepared for ADB. Toronto,
Canada.

McKenzie, D. 2009. “Impact Assessments in Finance and
Private Sector Development: What Have We
Learned and What Should We Learn?” Policy
Research Working Paper Series No. 4944. World
Bank, Washington, DC.

McKinsey and Co. 2001. India: The Growth Imperative.
Washington, DC: McKinsey and Company.

Mian, A. 2006. “Distance Constraints: The Limits of
Lending in Poor Economies.” Journal of Finance
61(3): 1465-1505.

Ministry of Labour and Employment. 2009. “Report on
Effect of Economic Slowdown on Employment
in India.” Labour Bureau, Government of India

Ministry of Manpower, Singapore. Available at http://
WWW.MOM. ZOV.Sg.

Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation,
India. Annual Survey of Industries 2004-2005

Moore, H. 1911. Laws of Wages: An Essay in Statistical
Economics. New York: Augustus M. Kelley.

Munusamy, M. 2009. “Development of SMEs in
Malaysia. A paper presented at the Regional
Workshop on SME Development and Regional
Economic Integration, Tokyo September 22-
26, 2008. Available at http://www.adbi.org/
files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.malaysia.sme.dev.

mngt.pdf.
National Bureau of Statistics of China. Available at http://

www.stats.gov.cn/english/.

National Commission for Enterprises in the Unorganised
Sector (NCEUS). 2007. Report of Financing of
Unorganised Enterprises. NCEUS, New Delhi.

. 2009. A Report in Technology Upgradation for
Enterprises in the Unorganised Sector Status:
Constraints and Recommendations. NCEUS,
New Delhi.

National Statistics, Taipei,China. Available at http://eng.
stat.gov.tw.

. 2006 Industry Commerce and Service Census

National Statistics Office, Philippines. Available at http://
www.census.gov.ph

. Annual Survey of Business and Industry 2005.

. Labor Force Survey 2007.

National Statistical Office, Thailand. Available at http://

web.nso.go.th/.

. Labor Force Survey 2005.
. 2007 Industrial Census.
National Sample Survey Organisation (NSSO), India.

2005-2006  Socio-Economic  Survey 615t
Round  (Schedule  10-Employment and
Unemployment).

. 2005-2006 Manufacturing Enterprise — 6204
Round (Schedule 2.2).

Nugent, J. 1996. “What explains the trend reversal in
the size distribution of Korean manufacturing
establishments?”  Journal of Development
Economics 48(2): 225-251. March.

Office of Small and Medium Enterprises Promotion
(OSMEP). Available at http://www.sme.go.th/
cms/web/homeeng

Oh, I, J.D. Lee, G.G. Choi, and A. Heshmati. 2008.
“Evaluation of Credit Guarantee Policy Using
Propensity Score Matching.” Small Business
Economics, forthcoming.

Oi, W. and T.L. Idson. 1999. “Firm size and wages.” In
Handbook of Labor Economics Volume 3B,
edited by Orley C. Ashenfelter and David Card.
Amsterdan, The Netherlands: Elsevier B.V.

Oldsman, E. and K. Hallberg. 2003. “Framework for
evaluating the Impact of Small Enterprise
Initiatives.”

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD). 2005. Oslo Manual: Guidelines for
Collecting and Interpreting Innovation Data,
Third Edition. OECD, Paris.

Piore, M. and C. Sabel. 1984. The Second Industrial
Divide. New York: Basic Books.

Pisitpaibool, C. 2009. “Best Practices on SME Development
and Management in Thailand.” A paper presented
at the Regional Workshop on SME Development
and Regional Economic Integration, Tokyo,
September 22-26, 2008. Available at http://www.
adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.thailand.
sme.dev.mngt.pdf.

Punyasavatsut, C. 2008. “SMEs in The Thai Manufacturing
Industry: Linking with MNEs.” In ASEAN SMEs
and Globalization. ERIA Research Project
Report 2007 No. 5, edited by Hank Lim. Chiba,
Japan: Institute of Developing Economies (IDE)-
JETRO.

Rajiv Gandhi Institute for Contemporary Studies (RGICS).
2006. “Small Sector in India: Status, Growth and
De-reservation. “

Ratha, D., S. Mohapatra, K.M. Vijavalakshmi, and Z. Xu.
2008. “Revisions to Remittance Trends 2007.”
Migration and Development Brief 5, World Bank.
Available at http://siteresources.worldbank.
org/INTPROSPECTS/Resources/334934-
1110315015165/ MD_Brief5.pdf.



http://www.mom.gov.sg
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.malaysia.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.malaysia.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.malaysia.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/
http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/
http://www.census.gov.ph
http://web.nso.go.th/
http://web.nso.go.th/
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.thailand.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.thailand.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.thailand.sme.dev.mngt.pdf

Ratha, D., S. Mohapatra, and A. Silwa. 2009.
“Outlook for Remittance Flows 2009-2011:
Remittances expected to fall by 7-10 percent
in 2009.” Migration and Development Brief
No. 10, World Bank. Available at http://
siteresources.worldbank.org/INTPROSPECTS/
Resources/334934-1110315015165/
MigrationandDevelopmentBrief10.pdf.

Ravallion, M. 2008. “ Are There Lessons for Africa from

China’s Success Against Poverty?” Policy

Research Working Paper No. 4463, World Bank,

Washington, D.C.

D. 2007. One Economics, Many Recipes:

Globalization, Institutions, and Economic

Growth. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University

Press.

. 2008. The New Development Economics: We

Shall Experiment, But How Shall We Learn?”

John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard

University.

. 2009. “Growth After the Crisis.” Paper prepared

for Commission on Growth and Development.

Available at http://ksghome.harvard.edu/

~drodrik/Growth%?20after %20the %20crisis.pdf.

Schumpeter, J.A. 1947. “The Creative Response in
Economic History.” Journal of Economic History
7 (2): 149-159.

Sembiring, M. 2009. “SMEs Growth and Development in
Indonesia.” A paper presented at the Regional
Workshop on SME Development and Regional
Economic Integration, Tokyo, September 22-
26, 2008. Available at  http://www.adbi.org/
files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.indonesia.sme.dev.
mngt.pdf.

Senthilkumar, T., S. Kadirvel, and S. S. Ramasamy.
2002. “A Low Cost Shuttleless Loom for the
Decentralised Powerloom Sector.” Powerloom
Development & Export Promotion Council
Newsletter 4(4). June. Available at http://www.
pdexcil.org/mews/35N0802/low.htm.

Small and Medium Business Administration website.
Available at http://eng.smba.go.kr/main.jsp.

Small and Medium Enterprise Administration website.
Available at http://www.moeasmea.gov.tw.

Small and Medium Industries Development Corporation
(SMIDEC) website. Available at http://www.
smidec.gov.my.

Small and Medium Enterprise Development Bank of
Thailand. 2008. Business Performance 2008.
http://www.smebank.co.th/download/annual51_
en/BusinessPerformance2008.pdf .

SMED Council- Department of Trade and Industry.
2004. SME Development Plan 2004-2010.

Rodrik,

Available:  http://www.dti.gov.ph/uploads/file/
SMED%?20plan%202004-2010.pdf.

SME Foundation. 2009. SME Foundation Fact Sheet.
Available at http://www.smef.org.bd/media/
fact sheet/fact sheet 09.pdf. Downloaded: July
10, 2009

SPRING Singapore. Programme for SMES. Available at
http://www.business.gov.sg.

Tambunan, T. 2008. “SME Development in Indonesia
with Reference to Networking, Innovativeness,
Market Expansion and Government Policy.”
In ASEAN SMEs and Globalization. ERIA
Research Project Report 2007 No. 5, edited by
Hank Lim. Chiba, Japan: Institute of Developing
Economies (IDE)-JETRO.

Tokman, V.E. 2007. “Modernizing the informal sector.”
DESA Working Paper No. 42. United Nations

Department of Economic and Social Affairs, New York.
June.

Tybout, J. 2000. “Manufacturing Firms in Developing
Countries: How Well Do They Do, and Why?”
Journal of Economic Literature 38(March 2000):
11-44.

Uchikawa, S. 2009. “Japanese Small and Medium
Enterprises under Long-term Recession.”

Uddin, N. 2008. “Country Paper for Joint Regional
Workshop on SME Development and Regional
Economic Integration Bangladesh .” A Country
Paper for the Workshop on SME Development
and Regional Economic Integration, Tokyo,
September 22-26, 2008. Available at http://www.
adbi.org/files/2008.09.24.cpp.paper.bangladesh.
tvet.sme.dev.mngt.pdf.

United Nations Industrial Development Organization
(UNIDO). 2007. International Yearbook of
Industrial Statistics 2007. UK: Edward Elgar
Publishing Limited.

. 2008. The International Yearbook of Industrial
Statistics 2008. UK: Edward Elgar Publishing
Limited.

Visaria, S. 2009. “Legal Reform and Loan Repayment:
The Microeconomic Impact of Debt Recovery
Tribunals in India.” American Economic Journal:
Applied Economics 1(3): 59-81.

Wengel, J. and E. Rodriguez. 2006. “SME export
performance in Indonesia after the crisis”. Small
Business Economics 26(1): 25-37. February.

World Bank. 2008. Finance for All? Polices and Pitfalls
in Expanding Access. Washington, DC: World
Bank.

. Global Development Finance Online database
Migration and Remittance Data (for

March). Available at http://econ.

worldbank.org/WBSITE/EXTERNAL/



http://siteresources.worldbank.org/INTPROSPECTS/
http://siteresources.worldbank.org/INTPROSPECTS/
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.indonesia.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.indonesia.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.23.cpp.paper.indonesia.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://eng.smba.go.kr/main.jsp
http://www.moeasmea.gov.tw
http://www.smidec.gov.my
http://www.smidec.gov.my
http://www.dti.gov.ph/uploads/file/SMED plan 2004-2010.pdf
http://www.dti.gov.ph/uploads/file/SMED plan 2004-2010.pdf
http://www.smef.org.bd/media/fact_sheet/fact_sheet_09.pdf
http://www.smef.org.bd/media/fact_sheet/fact_sheet_09.pdf
http://www.business.gov.sg
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.24.cpp.paper.bangladesh.tvet.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.24.cpp.paper.bangladesh.tvet.sme.dev.mngt.pdf
http://www.adbi.org/files/2008.09.24.cpp.paper.bangladesh.tvet.sme.dev.mngt.pdf

EXTDEC/EXTDECPROSPECTS/
0,,contentMDK:21122856~isCURL:Y ~menuP
K:3145470~pagePK:64165401~piPK:6416502
6~theSitePK:476883,00.html.

.World Bank Enterprise Survey database.
Available at http://www.enterprisesurveys.org.
World  Development Indicators  Online.
Downloaded 20 May 2009. Available at http://
devdata.worldbank.org/dataonline/.

Woodruff, C. and R. Zenteno. 2001. “Remittances and
Microenterprises in Mexico.”

Xu, X. 2009. “Policy Measures to Assist SMEs in the
People’s Republic of China.” Background paper
prepared for ADB.

Yamawaki, H. 2002. “The Evolution and Structure of
Industrial Clusters in Japan.” Small Business
Economics 18(1-3): 121-140. February.

Yang, D. 2008. “International Migration, Remittances
and Household Investment: Evidence from
Philippine Migrants’ Exchange Rate Shocks.”
The Economic Journal 118 (April): 591-630.

Yao,Y.2003. “Business Environment for SME Development
in China.” A presentation during the “Creating
A Conducive Legal and Regulatory Framework
for Small and Medium Enterprise Development
in Russia A Policy Dialogue Workshop”, St.
Petersburg, Russia, September 14-16, 2003.

Zia, B.H. 2008. “Export incentives, financial constraints,
and the (mis)allocation of credit: Micro-level
evidence from subsidized export loans.” Journal
of Financial Economics 87(2008): 498-527.






	9. Concluding Remarks
	References

